
    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 1 of 4 
March 21, 2016 

AGENDA 
STAYTON CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Monday, March 21, 2016 
Stayton Community Center 

400 W. Virginia Street 
Stayton, Oregon  97383 

 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER   7:00 PM   Mayor Porter 
 
FLAG SALUTE 
 
ROLL CALL/STAFF INTRODUCTIONS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS – PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Items not on the agenda but relevant to City business may be discussed at this meeting. Citizens are encouraged to 
attend all meetings of the City Council to insure that they stay informed. Agenda items may be moved forward if a 
Public Hearing is scheduled. 
a. Additions to the agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc.  
 
PRESENTATIONS / COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Request for Recognition:  If you wish to address the Council, please fill out a green “Request for Recognition” form.  
Forms are on the table at the back of the room. Recommended time for presentation is 10 minutes. Recommended 
time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
• Santiam Family Memorial Pool – YMCA Update 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
a. March 7, 2016 City Council Minutes 

 
Purpose of the Consent Agenda: 
In order to make more efficient use of meeting time, resolutions, minutes, bills, and other items which 
are routine in nature and for which no debate is anticipated, shall be placed on the Consent Agenda.  Any 
item placed on the Consent Agenda may be removed at the request of any council member prior to the 
time a vote is taken.  All remaining items of the Consent Agenda are then disposed of in a single motion 
to adopt the Consent Agenda.  This motion is not debatable.  The Recorder to the Council will then poll 
the council members individually by a roll call vote.  If there are any dissenting votes, each item on the 
consent Agenda is then voted on individually by roll call vote.  Copies of the Council packets include more 
detailed staff reports, letters, resolutions, and other supporting materials.  A citizen wishing to review 
these materials may do so at Stayton City Hall, 362 N. Third Avenue, Stayton, or the Stayton Public 
Library, 515 N. First Avenue, Stayton. 

The meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the 
hearing impaired or other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 
hours prior to the meeting. If you require special accommodations contact Deputy City Recorder Alissa 
Angelo at (503) 769-3425.



    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 2 of 4 
March 21, 2016 

PUBLIC HEARING – None  
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS – None  
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Award of Contract for 2016 Street Maintenance Program     Action 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
Renewal of the Moose Lodge Lease        Action 
a. Staff Report – Keith Campbell 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 

 
Ordinance No. 995, “Garage Sales”        Action 
a. Staff Report – Chief Rich Sebens 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 
 
STAFF/COMMISSION REPORTS 
Finance Director’s Report – Cindy Chauran & Elizabeth Baldwin   Informational 
a. February 2016 Monthly Finance Department Report 
 
Police Chief’s Report – Rich Sebens       Informational 
a. February 2016 Statistical Report 
 
Public Works Director’s Report – Lance Ludwick     Informational 
a. February 2016 Operating Report 
 
Planning & Development Director’s Report – Dan Fleishman   Informational 
a. February 2016 Activities Report 
 
Library Director’s Report – Pam Pugsley      Informational 
a. February 2016 Activities 
 
PRESENTATIONS/COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Recommended time for presentations is 10 minutes. 
Recommended time for comments from the public is 3 minutes. 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR      
 
 
BUSINESS FROM THE MAYOR      
a. Planning Commission 

• Dixie Ellard 
• Mark Kronquist 

 



    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 3 of 4 
March 21, 2016 

BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL 
 
 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS – Monday, April 4, 2016 
• Water Update 
• Land Use Public Hearing 
• Liberty House Presentation & Proclamation 
 
ADJOURN



    

 
Stayton City Council Agenda  Page 4 of 4 
March 21, 2016 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS 

MARCH 2016 
Monday March 21 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday March 28 Planning Commission CANCELLED 

APRIL 2016 
Monday April 4 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday April 5 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday April 8 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday April 12 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Monday April 18 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

Wednesday April 20 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday April 25 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

MAY 2016 
Monday May 2 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 3 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 3 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Thursday May 5 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday May 9 Budget Committee 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday May 10 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Friday May 13 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Monday May 16 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Wednesday May 18 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 

Monday May 30 CITY OFFICES CLOSED IN OBSERVANCE OF MEMORIAL DAY 
Tuesday May 31 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

JUNE 2016 
Monday June 6 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Tuesday June 7 Parks & Recreation Board 7:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Friday June 10 Community Leaders Meeting 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 

Tuesday June 14 Commissioner’s Breakfast 7:30 a.m. Covered Bridge Café 
Tuesday June 14 PEG Access Commission 12:00 p.m. City Hall Conference Room 

Wednesday June 15 Library Board 6:00 p.m. E.G. Siegmund Meeting Room 
Monday June 20 City Council 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 
Monday June 27 Planning Commission 7:00 p.m. Community Center (north end) 

 



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 1 of 2 
March 7, 2016 

City of Stayton 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

March 7, 2016 

LOCATION:  STAYTON COMMUNITY CENTER, 400 W. VIRGINIA STREET, STAYTON 

Time Start: 7:00 P.M.     Time End:  8:42 P.M. 

COUNCIL MEETING ATTENDANCE LOG 

COUNCIL STAYTON STAFF  
Mayor Henry Porter Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
Councilor Priscilla Glidewell Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
Councilor Ralph Lewis Dan Fleishman, Director of Planning & Development 
Councilor Jennifer Niegel Lance Ludwick, Public Works Director 
Councilor Brian Quigley Rich Sebens, Police Chief 
Councilor Joe Usselman Christine Shaffer, Finance Director (excused) 
 David Rhoten, City Attorney 
 Kelli Stevens, PW Administrative Assistant 

 
AGENDA ACTIONS 

REGULAR MEETING 
Announcements 
a. Additions to the Agenda 
b. Declaration of Ex Parte Contacts, Conflict of Interest, Bias, etc. 

 
None 
None 

Presentations / Comments from the Public 
a. Pioneer Park Rehabilitation Project Presentation 
 
 
 
 
b. Rese Bourdeau 
 
 
 
c. Sam Hayes 

 
Mr. Ludwick introduced Public Works 
Administrative Assistant Kelli Stevens who gave a 
brief presentation on the recent Pioneer Park 
Rehabilitation project. 
 
Ms. Bourdeau expressed her unhappiness with the 
City Attorney’s public statement regarding the 
inquiry. 
 
Mr. Brett resides at 1550 W. Brett. He complained 
of noise pollution coming from the new business 
behind his property.  

Consent Agenda 
a. February 16, 2016 City Council Minutes 
b. OLCC Annual Renewals 
c. Resolution No. 942, Budget Transfer 

 
Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Lewis, to approve the Consent Agenda.  
 
Council question if the number of outlets is 
restricted? Staff responded no. 
 
Motion passed 5:0. 

Public Hearing None. 
Unfinished Business None.  



 

 
Stayton City Council Meeting Minutes          Page 2 of 2 
March 7, 2016 

New Business 
Award of Contract for Western Avenue Overlay Project 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 

 
b. Council Deliberation 
c. Council Decision 

 
 
Mr. Ludwick briefly reviewed the staff report 
included in the Council packet. 
No further discussion. 
Motion from Councilor Lewis, seconded by 
Councilor Usselman, to award the contract for the 
Wester Avenue Overlay Project to Knife River. 
Motion passed 5:0.  

Staff / Commission Reports 
Award Of Roedieger Belt Filter Press Rehabilitation 
a. Staff Report – Lance Ludwick 

 
 
Lance briefly reviewed the staff report.  

Presentations / Comments from the Public None 
Business from the City Administrator  
Business from the Mayor 
a. Public Safety Commission 

• David Valencia 
b. Budget Committee 

• Tadd Humphreys 
• Jennifer Godfrey 

Motion from Councilor Niegel, seconded by 
Councilor Quigley to ratify the appointment of 
David Valencia to the Public Safety Commission 
and Tadd Humphreys and Jennifer Godfrey to the 
Budget Committee. Motion passed 5:0. 

Business from the Council None. 
Future Agenda Items – March 21, 2016 
• Quarterly Pool Update from YMCA 
• Street Maintenance Bid Award 
• Moose Lodge Lease Renewal 
• Water Update 

APPROVED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 21ST DAY OF MARCH 2016, BY A ____ VOTE OF THE STAYTON CITY 
COUNCIL. 

Date:    By:   
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

 
Date:   Attest:   

 Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
Date:      Transcribed by:       
   Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 



 
 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
    
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 

THRU:  Keith Campbell, City Administrator 

FROM:  Lance S. Ludwick, P.E. Public Works Director 

DATE:  March 21st, 2016 

SUBJECT:  Award of Contract for 2016 Street Maintenance Program 
  
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall the City award a bid to Knife River in the amount of $59,348.12 for the 2016 
Street Maintenance Program. 
 
ENCLOSURES 
 

1. Bid Tabulation Sheet – March 9th, 2016 @ 2:00 p.m.  
2. Minutes from Bid Opening 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
The project includes, but is not limited to, all labor, materials, and equipment necessary 
to construct a 4-inch asphalt patch in 2-inch lifts, consisting of 4,000 square feet of Level 
2, ½” Dense HMAC.  This work will include street cleaning, saw-cutting, asphalt 
pavement removal, haul off and disposal, installation of paving fabric, rock backfill,  
adjustment of existing valve boxes and manhole cover/frame assemblies to grade, as 
needed, and all other work necessary to meet the engineering intent, as shown in the 
Contract Documents. The project must be completed within thirty (30) calendar days 
after the dated "Notice to Proceed". 
  

 
Public Works Director Lance S. Ludwick and Sr. Engineering Technician Michael 
Schmidt developed a bid packet including specifications for the patching project work.   
 
Award of Contract                      Page 1 of 2  
2016 Street Maintenance Program 
 



 
The project was advertised competitively in the Daily Journal of Commerce and sealed 
bids were opened on March 9th, 2016. 
 
BIDS RECEIVED 
 
The City received bids from the following firms: 
 

 Contractor Total 

1 Knife River $59,348.12 

2 North Santiam Paving $62,161.40 

3 H&H Paving Co. $68,966.82 

4 Salem Road & Driveway $98,438.00 

 
STAFF REVIEW OF BIDS: 
 
Michael Schmidt and I reviewed the low bid and recommend the City award a contract to 
Knife River. 
 
OPTIONS 
 
 A. Award of Contract to the lowest responsible bidder in the full contract 

amount.   
 
 B. Reject all bids. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 

 
Award of Contract to Knife River in the amount of $59,348.12. 

 
MOTION:  
 

Motion to award the 2016 Street Maintenance Program to Knife River in the 
amount of $59,348.12. 

 
Award of Contract                      Page 2 of 2  
2016 Street Maintenance Program 
 



City of Stayton 
Bid Opening: 2016 Street Maintenance Program 

March 9th, 2016 Closed at 2:00 pm 
 
 

 
Description: The project includes, but is not limited to, all labor, materials, 

and equipment necessary to construct a 4-inch asphalt patch in 
2-inch lifts, consisting of 4,000 square feet of Level 2, ½” 
Dense HMAC.   

 
Attendees:  City of Stayton - Michael Schmidt, Kelli Stevens, The 
following bids were submitted: 
 
Contractor Name      Amount 
 
1. Salem Road & Driveway    $98,438.00   
2. North Santiam Paving     $62,161.40 
3. Knife River       $59,348.12 
4. H&H Paving Co.     $68,966.82 
 
 
    
The City of Stayton will review the bids and make a recommendation of 
award to the City. The City Council will award the bid at their 
March 21st, 2016 council meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: 
 
 
Kelli Stevens 
City of Stayton 
 



Est. 
Qty Unit

Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Unit Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Unit Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Unit Price Bid Unit Price Extended Bid Unit Price

1 Mobilization 1 LS $3,120.00 $3,120.00 $1,250.00 $1,250.00 $3,800.00 $3,800.00 $1,250.00 $12,500.00
2 Temporary Traffic Control 1 LS $2,905.00 $2,905.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $3,400.00 $3,400.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00
3 Erosion Control Measures 1 LS $200.00 $200.00 $400.00 $400.00 $800.00 $800.00 $500.00 $500.00
4 9,228 SF

5 Over Excavation 25 CY $80.00 $2,000.00 $55.00 $1,375.00 $80.00 $2,000.00 $80.00 $2,000.00

Total Bid Price $59,348.12 Total Bid Price $62,161.40 Total Bid Price $68,966.82 Total Bid Price $98,438.00 

$58,136.40 $6.39 $58,966.82 $8.50 $78,438.00 

Asphalt Paving: to include: saw-cutting, excavation, haul off and disposal, 
fabric, rock, Backfill and a 4-inch thick asphalt patch (Level 2, 1/2" Dense 
HMAC).

$5.54 $51,123.12 
$6.30 

Salem Road & Driveway

YES

YES

NO

YES

H&H Paving. Co.

YES

YES

YES

YES

Bid Bond
Drug Test Form
First Tier Subcontractors List

YES

YES

YES
Resident vs. Non-resident Bidder

City of Stayton 2016 Street Maintenance Program
Bid Tabulation 
Bid Date:3/9/2016 at 2:00 p.m.

Bid Item Name

Bid Amount

Knife River Corporation - Northwest North Santiam Paving Co.

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES



 
Moose Lodge Lease Agreement  Page 1 of 2  
March 21, 2016 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Keith Campbell, City Administrator 
 
DATE:   March 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Renewal of the Moose Lodge Lease 
  
     
ISSUE 

Renewal of the Lease Agreement with the Stayton Loyal Order of Moose, Stayton Lodge #2639 
for their use of the City owned property located at 352 E. Florence Street. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the Council approve the attached Lease Agreement between the City of 
Stayton and the Stayton Loyal Order of Moose, Stayton Lodge #2639, and authorize the City 
Administrator to sign the agreement. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Currently the Moose Lodge is renting the building for $500 per month; staff is requesting the 
City Council authorize the City Administrator to sign the lease renewal for a period of two years 
at the current monthly rate of $500 per month.  
 
However, staff feels it’s important to note the City needs to begin exploring long term plans for 
this site. The Moose Lodge has rented the facility from the City since its purchase in 2007. 
Originally, the intention for the site was the future location for a future City Hall building. This 
plan needs to be revisited and reviewed for feasibility. This is something staff will be proactive 
in looking at in order to have a future plan in place for the property prior to the next contract 
expiration in 2018. 
 
In addition, the Moose Lodge also possesses an OLCC license for full on-premises sales. Over 
the years, the Moose Lodge has requested several temporary licenses from the OLCC to serve 
alcohol in an outdoor seating area. They have recently requested a permanent modification to 
their OLCC license which would allow them to serve alcohol in the outdoor seating area 
anytime they choose rather than on a temporary basis. The City has no issue with this request, 
and supports it. The OLCC has requested a “landlord letter” stating the City approves of this 
modification to their license. If the Council chooses to renew their lease, the Chief of Police will 
also issue the attached authorization letter to OLCC. 



 
Moose Lodge Lease Agreement  Page 2 of 2  
March 21, 2016 

 
OPTIONS AND MOTIONS 
The city Council is presented with the following options. 
 

1. Approve the lease renewal for the building located at 352 E. Florence, between the 
City and Stayton Loyal Order of the Moose. 
Move to approve the new lease agreement directing the City Administrator to sign the 
new lease agreement. 
 

2. Approve the lease renewal as modified for the building located at 352 E. Florence, 
between the City and Stayton Loyal Order of the Moose. 
Move to approve the modified lease agreement directing the City Administrator to sign 
the lease agreement.  
 



Lease for 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR   Page 1 of 9 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
This LEASE AGREEMENT is by and between City of Stayton ("Lessor") and Stayton Loyal Order of 
Moose, Stayton Lodge #2639 ("Lessee")                   
   
 Lessor desires to lease approximately 2,000 sq. ft. of space at 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR 
(“Premises”), and Lessee desires to lease said Premises from Lessor.  Premises to be leased consist of the entire 
building, including the restrooms and “kitchen”.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the parties set forth in this Lease 
Agreement ("Lease"), Lessor and Lessee agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1  AGREEMENT TO LEASE; TERM  
 
 1.1 Term of Lease 
 
  Lessor hereby leases the Premises to Lessee and Lessee hereby leases the Premises from Lessor, 
for the term and in accordance with all of the agreements, covenants, and conditions set forth in this lease.  The term 
of this Lease ("Term") shall begin, March 1, 2016, after the Lease has been signed and approved by both parties; 
and, shall continue for a period of  two (2) years, unless sooner terminated pursuant to any provision of this Lease.   
The Commencement Date will be the day the lease has been signed and approved by both parties. 
 
 1.2 Optional Extension of Term 
 
  If Lessee is not then in default of this Lease and if the Lease has not been previously terminated, 
then on terms agreed to and by mutual consent of both parties, at any time prior to the 60th day before the last day of 
the Term, this Lease may be extended for a period of two (2) additional years.  There may be no more than one (2) 
extensions of this Lease. 
 
 1.3 Early Termination 
 
  The parties understand that the premise is located on public property, which may be subject to sale 
or demolition at a future time at the discretion of the Stayton City Council.  In such event, it may be necessary to 
terminate this Lease and vacate the premises.  In such event, the Lessor agrees to a minimum six (6) month period, 
after notice to Lessee, within which the Lessee shall vacate.  Any advance rents beyond the termination date shall be 
repaid to the Lessee. 
 
 
SECTION 2  RENT; LATE CHARGES; TAXES 
 
 2.1 Base Rent 
 
  From Commencement Date, Lessee shall pay each calendar month as Base Rent the following: 
 
   Base Rent of $500.00 
    
 
Base Rent shall be paid in advance prior to the 30th day of each calendar month without any deduction, offset, or 
hold back of any nature whatsoever.  All payments shall be made payable to the City of Stayton and delivered to 
Stayton City Hall. 
 
  
 
 



Lease for 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR   Page 2 of 9 

2.2 Interest and Late Charges 
 
  Rent, if not paid within thirty (30) days of the due date, shall bear interest at the rate of nine 
percent (9 %) per annum from the due date until fully paid, with the interest rate to be applied to the amount past 
due.  
 
 2.3 Property Taxes 
 
  Lessee shall be responsible for and pay any and all property taxes levied on the Premises, as a 
result of this lease agreement. 
 
SECTION 3  USE OF THE PREMISES 
 
 3.1 Use 
 
  Lessee shall use the Premises only for Lodge related meetings and social events, and closely 
related uses, and for no other purpose without Lessor's prior written consent, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld.  Lessee shall comply, at its expense, with all applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations of 
any public authority.  Lessee shall not conduct or permit any activities on the Premises that are a nuisance, may 
damage the reputation of the Premises, or are offensive to Lessor or other tenants of the building.   
 
 3.2 Hazardous Substances 
 
  3.2.1  Lessee shall refrain from using or allowing anyone else from using the Premises to 
generate, manufacture, refine, transport, treat, store, recycle, release, or dispose of any hazardous substance as 
defined below.  Lessee shall refrain from causing, permitting or suffering any hazardous substance, as defined 
below, to be brought upon, used, kept, or stored in or about the Premises without the prior written consent of Lessor.  
Lessee shall refrain from the discharge, deposit or disposal of hazardous substances or engaging in any activity 
which would be subject to or regulated by state, local, or federal law or regulation and as defined below.  Lessee 
shall be responsible for any and all preventative, investigative, or remedial actions including emergency response, 
removal, containment, and other remedial actions that are required by law or government regulation or order or that 
are necessary to minimize damage or injury to property, persons, or the environment, or the threat of such damage or 
injury by release of or exposure to hazardous substances. 
 
  3.2.2 Lessee shall not commit or permit any action (or inaction) upon the Premises which may 
subject Lessee or Lessor to any liability for injury, damages to persons or property, or any violation of law, or legal 
requirements, regarding the unlawful manufacture, storage, transportation of any Hazardous Substances, as defined 
below, of any type, within or on said Premises, but shall exercise such control over the property to protect Lessee 
and Lessor fully against any such liability.   
 
  3.2.3 Hazardous Substances Defined.  As used herein "Hazardous Substances" shall mean 
any asbestos, petroleum, gasoline, fuel, or any substance or material defined or designated as hazardous or toxic 
waste, hazardous or toxic material, hazardous or toxic substances, or other similar term, by any federal, state or local 
environmental statute, regulation or ordinance presently in effect. 
 
 3.3 Limitations on Use 
 
  Lessee shall refrain from any use of the Premises that would cause the fire insurance rates on the 
Premises or the building to be increased.  If Lessee fails to comply with this restriction after reasonable notice from 
Lessor, Lessee shall pay any resulting extra cost of fire insurance upon written demand of Lessor. 
 
 
 
 



Lease for 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR   Page 3 of 9 

 3.4 Building Loads 
 
  Lessee shall refrain from any activity or installation that will overload the floor or electrical 
circuits of the Building or create undue stress or strain on any part of the Building.  Lessor shall have the right to 
approve in advance the installation of any power-driven machinery, or other machinery or heavy equipment not 
customary for normal building use.  Lessor may select a qualified electrician whose opinion will control regarding 
electrical circuits or a qualified engineer or architect whose opinion will control regarding floor loads or other 
stresses. 
 
 3.5 Signs 
 
  Lessee shall not display, inscribe, print, or affix any permanent sign, picture, advertisement, or 
notice on any portion of the Premises, including but not limited to any wall, glass, wood, or brick surface, without 
Lessor's prior written approval as to design, size, location, and color, and without any other approval required by the 
City.  
 
 3.6 Acceptance “As Is”; Compliance with Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
 
  3.6.1(a) Lessee Accepts Building “As Is”.  Lessee agrees to make all repairs to the building’s 
structural components, foundation, gutters, exterior walls, common halls, HVAC, heating system, plumbing, 
electrical, and if the total cost of making the repairs exceeds $2,000, the Lessee shall have the right, upon giving 
Lessor sixty (60) days prior written notice, to terminate this Lease.  If Lessor elects to terminate the Lease, all rights 
and obligations of the parties shall cease as of the date of termination, and Lessee shall be entitled to the 
reimbursement of any prepaid rents paid by Lessee and attributable to the anticipated term. 
 
  3.6.1(b) Compliance.  Lessee shall be responsible for compliance with the ADA for all issues 
which arise with respect to Lessee’s trade fixtures, equipment and free standing space dividers and any other fixtures 
or equipment installed or used on the premises by Lessee.  Lessee shall take all steps which are necessary to comply 
with the ADA, shall pay for all costs of compliance, promptly, when due, and shall pay all penalties, fines, 
judgments, including attorney fees and court costs, which may be levied or assessed because of a failure to comply 
with the ADA. 
   
  3.6.2  Extraordinary Expenses.  In the event that Lessor becomes aware of any financial 
obligation not existing on the Commencement Date, including any fee, license or tax imposed by another 
governmental agency which exceeds the sum of $1,000, Lessor shall have the right upon giving Lessee sixty (60) 
days prior written notice, to terminate this Lease.  If Lessor elects to terminate the Lease, all rights and obligations 
of the parties shall cease as of the date of termination, and Lessee shall be entitled to the reimbursement of any 
prepaid rents paid by Lessee and attributable to the anticipated term. 
 
SECTION 4  MAINTENANCE 
 
 4.1 Obligations 
 
  Lessee shall maintain the Premises (including the building) in good condition and make repairs at 
Lessee's cost.  Repair of damage caused by Lessee's negligent or intentional acts or acts in breach of this Lease shall 
be at Lessee's expense. 
 
 4.2 Performance of Maintenance 
 
  Lessor shall have the right to erect scaffolding and other apparatus necessary for the purpose of 
making required repairs.  Lessor shall have no liability for consequential damages for failure to perform required 
maintenance and repair.  Lessor shall have no liability for interference with Lessee's use by needed repairs and 
installations, or modifications required by any governmental body, provided that the work is performed in a manner 



Lease for 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR   Page 4 of 9 

designed to cause a reasonable minimum of interference to Lessee.  Lessor shall have no obligation to use overtime 
labor to minimize the disturbance to Lessee. 
 
SECTION 5  UTILITIES 
 
 5.1 Provision of Utilities 
 
  At Lessor’s expense, Lessor shall cause the Premises to be provided with accommodations for 
garbage, as well as for lighting, natural gas hookup for heating, telephone, and air conditioning; the costs of such 
utilities shall be at the Lessee’s expense.  Lessee's electrical usage on the Premises shall be individually metered and 
billed directly by the utility providing such service.  Lessee shall be solely responsible for the payment for such 
service and shall do so promptly upon receipt of the billing statement. 
 
 5.2 Interruption of Services 
 
  Lessor does not warrant that any of the services and utilities referred to in this Section will be free 
from interruption caused by or resulting from any variation, interruption, or failure of such services due to any cause 
whatsoever.  No temporary interruption or failure of such services incident to the making of repairs, alterations, or 
improvements, or due to accident, strike, or conditions or events beyond Lessor's reasonable control shall be deemed 
an eviction of Lessee or relieve Lessee from any of Lessee's obligations under this Lease, provided that any such 
repairs alterations or improvements that have been performed by Lessor or Lessor's contractors are performed in a 
manner designed to cause a reasonable minimum of interference with such services.  Lessor shall not be in default of 
this Lease, or have any liability to Lessee for damages, nor shall Lessee be entitled to any abatement of or offset 
against Rent due if any of the services to be provided by Lessor pursuant to this Section 5 are not provided by 
Lessor. 
 
SECTION 6  MAINTENANCE AND ALTERATIONS 
    
 6.1 Maintenance 
 
  Lessee shall maintain the Premises (including the building) in a neat, clean, good condition 
(including janitorial) at all times and shall cause to be repaired all damage to the Premises caused by Lessee's use.  
In the event such a repair is required, Lessor may require that the repair work be performed by Lessor and Lessee 
shall pay the actual cost of the repair work.  If repair work is done by Lessee, Lessor shall have the right to approve 
the workers selected by Lessee.  If Lessee fails to perform, Lessor may provide such service or maintenance at 
Lessee’s expense. 
 
 6.2 Alterations 
 
  Lessee shall be responsible for any alterations, additions, or improvements to the Premises, with 
the Lessor's prior written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.  The cost of any required permits will 
be the responsibility of the Lessee.  Any such additions, alterations, or improvements, shall at once become part of 
the building and belong to Lessor unless the terms of the applicable consent provide otherwise.  
 
SECTION 7  LIABILITY TO THIRD PERSONS 
 
 7.1 Construction Work 
 
  Lessee shall give Lessor written notice at least 10 days in advance of the commencement of any 
work which could result in the imposition of a lien pursuant to ORS Chapter 87 and Lessee authorizes Lessor to post 
a notice of non-responsibility pursuant to ORS 87.030.  Lessee shall pay when due all claims arising out of Lessee's 
conduct for work done on or for services rendered or material furnished to the Premises, and shall keep the Premises 
free from any liens other than liens created by Lessor.  If Lessee fails to pay any such claim or to discharge any such 



Lease for 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR   Page 5 of 9 

lien, Lessor may do so and collect such amount as additional Base Rent, together with interest thereon as provided in 
Section 2. 
 
 7.2 Liability 
 
  7.2.1. Lessee shall not commit or permit any action (or inaction) upon the Premises which may 
subject Lessor to any liability for injury, damages to persons or property, or any violation of law or legal 
requirements, but shall exercise such control over the Premises as to protect Lessor fully against any such liability.  
Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Lessor from and against all claims against Lessor arising from any 
act, omission, or negligence of Lessee, its contractors, licensees, agents, servants, employees, invitees, or visitors; all 
claims against Lessor arising from any accident, injury, or damage whatsoever caused to any person or property 
occurring during the Term and in, about, or outside the Premises, if such accident, injury, or damages results (or is 
claimed to have resulted) from an act or omission of Lessee or Lessee's agents, employees, invitees, or visitors; and 
any claim against Lessor arising from any breach, violation, or nonperformance by Lessee of any provision of this 
Lease.  This indemnity and hold harmless agreement shall include, indemnity from and against any and all liability 
fines, suits, demands, costs, and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) of any kind or nature incurred in 
connection with any such claim or any proceeding brought thereon and the defense thereof. 
 
 7.3 Liability Insurance 
 
  7.3.1. From and after the date of delivery of the Premises to Lessee, and at all times during the 
Term, Lessee shall carry comprehensive public liability insurance in the amount of not less than $1,000,000 and in a 
form satisfactory to Lessor.  If alcohol is to be served on the premises, as allowed by City, State and Federal laws 
and authorities, the policy must include a liquor liability clause.  Such insurance shall be evidenced by a certificate 
delivered to Lessor stating that the coverage will not be canceled or materially altered without 30 days' advance 
written notice to Lessor.  Such insurance shall name Lessor and any parties designated by Lessor as additional 
insureds and shall contain a contractual liability endorsement referring to this Lease. 
 
  7.3.2. It is understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that Moose International, 
Inc., located in Mooseheart, County of Kane, of Illinois, assumes no liability which might be incurred by either party 
to this Agreement during the term of said Agreement.  The parties to this Agreement shall indemnify and hold 
Moose International, Inc., an Indiana not-for-profit corporation, harmless from and against any claim, loss or 
damages, including reasonable attorney’s fees, in all disputes related to this Agreement. 
 
 7.4 Property Damage and Fire Insurance 
 
  Lessee shall procure and maintain policies of fire insurance with standard extended coverage 
endorsements on a replacement cost basis covering all equipment and tenant improvements on the leased Premises 
in an amount sufficient to avoid application of any coinsurance clause and with loss payable to Lessor.  The policies 
shall be written in such form with such terms and by such insurance companies reasonably acceptable to Lessor.  
Lessee shall deliver to Lessor certificates of coverage from each insurer containing a stipulation that coverage will 
not be canceled or diminished without a minimum of 10 days' written notice to Lessor.  In the event of loss, Lessee 
shall give immediate notice to Lessor.  Lessor may make proof of loss if Lessee fails to do so within 15 days of the 
casualty. 
 
 7.5 Lessor's Right to Procure Insurance 
 
  In the event Lessee fails to procure, maintain, or pay for, at the times and for the duration specified 
in this Section, any insurance required therein, or fails to carry insurance required by law or governmental 
regulation, Lessor may (but shall not be obligated to) at any time, upon written notice to Lessee, procure such 
insurance and pay the premiums therefore, in which event Lessee shall repay to the Lessor all sums so paid by 
Lessor, together with interest thereon as provided in Section 2.2 and any costs or expenses incurred by Lessor in 
connection therewith, within ten days following Lessor's written demand to Lessee for such payment. 
 



Lease for 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR   Page 6 of 9 

SECTION 8  DAMAGE 
 
 8.1 Limitation of Lessor's Liability 
 
  Any building employee or contractor to whom any property is entrusted by or on behalf of Lessee 
shall be deemed to be acting as Lessee's agent with respect to such property.  Lessor and its agents shall not be liable 
for any damage to any property entrusted to employees or contractors of Lessee by or on behalf of Lessee, or for the 
loss of or damage to any property of Lessee by theft or otherwise.  Neither Lessor nor its agents shall be liable for 
any injury or damage to persons or property or any interruption of Lessee's business resulting from any cause 
whatsoever; any damage caused by other tenants or persons in the building or caused by construction of any private, 
public, or quasi-public work; or any defect, whether latent or patent, in the Premises or the building.  However, no 
provision of this Lease shall be construed to relieve Lessor from responsibility directly to Lessee for any loss or 
damage caused directly to Lessee by the negligent acts or omissions of Lessor. 
 
 8.2 Damage to Premises/Building 
 
  Lessee shall give immediate notice to Lessor in case of fire or accident involving the Premises or 
building.  If fire or other casualty causes such damage to the Premises or building as to make the Premises unsuited 
for the use permitted by this Lease, either Lessor or Lessee may elect to terminate this Lease by written notice to 
Lessee given within 30 days following the date of damage.  Upon the giving of such notice, this Lease shall be 
terminated as of the date of damage. 
 
 8.3 Restoration 
  
  8.3.1 If the Premises or building is damaged and this Lease has not been terminated pursuant to 
this Section, Lessor shall repair the damage and restore the Premises or building to a condition comparable to that 
existing prior to the damage, subject to the provisions of Section 8.4.  Repair shall be accomplished with all 
reasonable dispatch, subject to interruptions and delays from labor disputes and other causes beyond Lessor's 
reasonable control.  Base Rent shall be reduced during the period of repair by an amount equal to the Base Rent 
multiplied by the ratio between the number of square feet of the Premises which are not reasonably usable for the 
use permitted by this Lease on account of such damage and the number of square feet in the Premises.  If the 
damage does not cause any material interference with Lessee's use, there shall be no abatement of Base Rent.  
Lessee shall cooperate with Lessor during the period of repair and vacate all or any part of the Premises to the extent 
necessary for the performance of the required work. 
 
  8.3.2 If the Premises are partially destroyed by fire or other casualty to an extent that prevents 
the conducting of Tenant’s use of the Premises in a normal manner, and repairs do not exceed sixty (60) percent of 
the value of the building, and if the damage is reasonably repairable within sixty days after the occurrence of the 
destruction, Landlord shall repair the Premises and a just proportion of the lease payments shall abate during the 
period of the repair according to the extent to which the Premises have been rendered untenantable.  However if the 
damage is not repairable within sixty days, or if Lessor is prevented from repairing the damage by forces beyond 
Lessor’s control, or if repair costs exceed sixty (60) percent of the value of the building, or if the property is 
condemned, this Lease shall terminate upon sixty days’ written notice of such event or condition by either party and 
any unearned rent paid in advance by Lessee shall be apportioned and refunded to it.  Lessee shall give Lessor notice 
of any damage to the Premises. 
 
 
 8.4 Restoration of Lessee's Property 
 
  Repair, replacement, or restoration of any fixtures and personal property owned by Lessee or any 
additions or improvements to the Premises constructed by Lessee shall be the responsibility of Lessee regardless of 
the cause of the damage, except as caused solely by Lessor's negligence.  Lessee shall pay all costs of moving its 
property when required in connection with repairs of the Premises. 
 



Lease for 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR   Page 7 of 9 

 8.5 Protection of Lessee's Property, Subrogation 
 
  Lessee shall be responsible for insuring its personal property and trade fixtures located on the 
Premises.  Neither party shall be liable to the other for any loss or damage caused by water damage or any of the 
risks covered by a standard fire insurance policy with an extended coverage endorsement, and there shall be no 
subrogated claim by one party's insurance carrier against the other party arising out of any such loss. 
 
SECTION 9  DEFAULT, REMEDIES 
 
 9.1 Events of Default.  The following shall be events of default: 
 
  9.1.1 Failure of Lessee to pay any rent or other charge within 30 days after it is due. 
 
  9.1.2 Abandonment, desertion or vacation of the Premises during the Term, except as required 
under this Lease. 
 
  9.1.3 Failure of Lessee to comply with any other term or condition or fulfill any other 
obligation under this Lease within 20 days after written notice by Lessor specifying the nature of the default with 
reasonable particularity.  If the default is of such a nature that it cannot be remedied fully within such 20-day period, 
this requirement shall be satisfied if Lessee begins correction of the default within such 20-day period and thereafter 
proceeds with reasonable diligence and in good faith to effect the remedy as soon as is reasonably possible. 
 
  9.1.4 The filing by Lessee or third party of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy or insolvency, 
seeking any relief under the present or any future federal bankruptcy act or any other present or future applicable 
federal, state, or other statute or law, or any assignment by Lessee for the benefit of creditors. 
 
 9.2 Remedies for Default Lessor shall have the following remedies if in default in addition to and 
shall not preclude any other remedy available to Lessor under applicable law: 
 
  9.2.1 Lessor, at Lessor's option, may relet the whole or any part of the Premises from time to 
time, either in the name of Lessor or otherwise, to such tenants, for such terms ending before, on, or after the 
expiration of the Term.  No such reletting or failure shall operate to relieve Lessee of any liability under the Lease or 
otherwise to affect any such liability. 
 
  9.2.2 Whether or not Lessor retakes possession of or relets the Premises, Lessor shall have the 
right to recover unpaid rent and all damages caused by the default, including attorneys' fees and costs. 
 
  9.2.3 If Lessee shall fail to remove any of Lessee's property of any nature whatsoever from the 
leased Premises or the building at the termination of this Lease or when Lessor has the right of re-entry, Lessor may, 
at Lessor's option, remove and store said property without liability for the loss thereof or damage thereto, such 
storage to be for the account and the expense of Lessee. 
 
 
SECTION 10  SURRENDER OF PREMISES 
 

10.1 Surrender of Premises 
 

  Upon expiration or early termination of this Lease, Lessee shall deliver all keys to Lessor and 
surrender the Premises and all improvements made to the Premises and all fixtures, whether installed or paid for by 
Lessor or Lessee, in first class condition.  Depreciation and wear from ordinary use for the purpose for which the 
Premises were leased need not be restored, but all repairs for which Lessee is responsible shall be completed by the 
latest practical date prior to such surrender.  Lessee shall remove all of its movable furnishings and movable trade 
fixtures that remain its property and restore all damage resulting from such removal.  In addition, Lessor may 
require the removal of any nonstandard tenant improvements or fixtures installed by or for Lessee and Lessee shall 



Lease for 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR   Page 8 of 9 

restore all damage resulting from such removal.  Failure to remove any property from the Premises in accordance 
with this Section shall be an abandonment of such property, and Lessor may dispose of such property in any manner 
without liability and may charge Lessee for the actual cost of removal, storage, and disposal of such property in any 
manner without liability and the renovation of the Premises required after such removal.  
 
 10.2 Failure to Surrender 
 
  If Lessee fails to vacate the Premises when required, including failure to remove all its personal 
property, Lessor may elect either to treat Lessee as a tenant from month to month, subject to all provisions of this 
Lease. 
 
SECTION 11  ACCESS TO PREMISES BY LESSOR 
 
 Lessee shall give Lessor and its agents reasonable access to the Premises to enable them to inspect the 
Premises, to respond to any emergency or perform any maintenance or other work on the Premises, or for the 
purposes of exhibiting the Premises to prospective occupants. 
 
SECTION 12  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
 12.1 Time 
 
  Time is of the essence of the performance of each obligation of Lessee under this Lease. 
 
 12.2 Waiver 
 
  Any waiver of any provision of this Lease shall be in writing signed by the party to be bound by 
such waiver.  Waiver of performance of any provision shall not be a waiver of nor prejudice the party's right 
otherwise to require performance of the same provision or any other provision. 
 
 12.3 Prior Agreements; Modifications 
 
   This Lease is the entire, final, and complete agreement of the parties pertaining to the lease of the 
Premises, and supersedes and replaces all prior or existing written and oral agreements between the parties.  This 
Lease may not be modified except by endorsement, dated and signed by the parties.  Lessor shall not be bound by 
any oral or written statement of any servant, agent, or employee modifying this Lease. 
  
 12.4 Successors 
 
  Subject to the limitations concerning transfers by Lessee, the rights, liabilities, and remedies 
provided in this Lease shall extend to the heirs, legal representatives, successors, and assigns of the Parties.  The 
words "Lessor" and "Lessee" and their accompanying verbs or pronouns, wherever used in this Lease, shall apply 
equally to all persons, firms, proprietorships, partnerships, associations, or corporations which may be or become 
parties to this Lease. 
 
 12.5 Notices 
 
  Any notice that either party desires to give the other shall be given by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, addressed as follows (changes of address shall be promptly provided to the other party): 
 

TO LESSOR: City of Stayton  TO LESSEE: Stayton Loyal Order of Moose 
   362 N. Third Avenue   Stayton Lodge #2639 
   Stayton, OR 97383-1726   PO Box 28 
        Stayton, OR 97383-0028 

     



Lease for 352 E. Florence Avenue, Stayton, OR   Page 9 of 9 

 12.6 Dispute Resolution (construed by Oregon Laws) 
 
  12.6.1  In the event a dispute arises between the parties as to the terms of this Agreement, the 
matter shall first be addressed through mandatory mediation.  If not settled by mediation, the parties shall resolve the 
matter by binding arbitration in accordance with Oregon laws. 
 
  12.6.2    In the event either party brings action to enforce the terms of this Lease or to seek 
damages for its breach, or arising out of any dispute concerning the terms and conditions hereby created, the 
prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of its reasonable attorney fees, costs, and expenses, incurred therein, 
including such costs and fees as may be required on appeal.  Venue shall be in the Circuit Court of Marion County, 
Oregon. 
   
 12.7 Preparation of Lease Agreement - Notice to Lessee 
 
  This Lease Agreement has been prepared by Lessor and/or its legal counsel.  The Lessee expressly 
acknowledges that Lessee has been advised that Lessee may and should obtain Lessee's own legal representation in 
regard to this transaction and this Lease. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Lease to be duly executed in duplicate. 
 
 
LESSOR:      CITY OF STAYTON 
 
 
 
Dated:  _______________, 2016  By: _____________________________________ 
      Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 
 
Dated:  _______________, 2016  Attest: _____________________________________ 
      Alissa Angelo, Deputy City Recorder 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
__________________________________             
David A. Rhoten, Stayton City Attorney 
 
 
LESSEE:     STAYTON LOYAL ORDER OF MOOSE, 
      STAYTON LODGE #2639 
            
 
 
Dated:  _______________, 2016  By: ____________________________________ 
      Bill Agee, Administrator 
 
 
 
 
 





 
Ord 995 Proposed Amendments to SMC Ch. 5.08 & 5.16 related to Garage Sales 

March 21, 2016 
Page 1 of 2   

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO: Mayor Henry A. Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM: Rich Sebens, Chief of Police,  
 
DATE: March 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 995, “Garage Sales”  

ISSUE: 

The City has a garage sale section of the municipal code in place.  The code regulates garage 
sales and requires those operating a garage sale to obtain a permit. 

Recently, City staff reviewed the permit process and determined there is no reason to have the 
permit other than it allows citizens to advertise their garage sale through the City.  It has not 
been enforced in several years.  It has become a voluntary compliance permit and allowed 
citizens to obtain a permit in exchange for having their garage sale listed on the City garage sale 
page.  The cost of the permit is currently five dollars.  The City averages about 270 permits 
issued per year. 

The original purpose of the permit was to help regulate and monitor how many garage sales a 
person had at one location.  This was to prevent a person from having a perpetual garage sale 
in a neighborhood which causes a disruption to those living in the area.  Perpetual garage sales 
can also lead to the sale of stolen items. Since the permit system is not enforced, it makes it 
very difficult to use as a tool to monitor the perpetual garage sale. 

Staff has determined that a permit is not needed to enforce a perpetual garage sale issue. 

Staff is also recommending changes to the code to address those who use a garage sale as a 
Second Hand business. 

The proposed changes were reviewed by the City attorney and placed in City Hall for public 
review 

 

 

  



 
Ord 995 Proposed Amendments to SMC Ch. 5.08 & 5.16 related to Garage Sales 

March 21, 2016 
Page 2 of 2   

OPTION AND MOTIONS 

1. Approve Ordinance No. 995 as presented. 

Move to approve Ordinance No. 995 as presented. 

The City Recorder shall call the roll and the names of each Councilor present and their 
vote shall be recorded in the meeting minutes.  If the vote is unanimous, Ordinance No. 
994 is enacted and will be presented to the Mayor for his approval. 

If the vote is not unanimous, Ordinance No. 995 will be brought before the Council for a 
second consideration at the April 4, 2016 meeting. 

2. Approve Ordinance No. 995 with modifications.  

Move to approve Ordinance No. 995 with the following changes … and direct staff to 
incorporate these changes into the Ordinance  

Ordinance No. 995 will be brought before the Council for a second consideration at the 
April 4, 2016 meeting. 

3. Retain the Code unchanged. 

No motion is necessary. 



   
Ord. 995 March 21, 2016 

Page 1 of 2 

ORDINANCE NO. 995 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE STAYTON MUNICIPAL CODE TITLE 5, 
CHAPTERS 5.08 AND 5.16 RELATING TO BUSINESS LICENSES, PERMITS, 
REGULATIONS AND VIOLATIONS; AND, GARAGE SALE REGULATIONS. 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton’s Municipal Code regulates garage sales; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton currently requires persons who host garage sales to have 
a permit to do so; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton desires to update the Stayton Municipal Code (SMC) 
Title 5.08 to eliminate the requirement of a garage sale permit; 

WHEREAS, the City of Stayton desires to update the SMC Title 5.16 to amend 
regulations in regards to garage sales. 

NOW THEREFORE, the City of Stayton ordains: 

SECTION 1.  SMC Section 5.08.010 is amended to read as:  (additions are underlined; 
deletions appear as strikethroughs): 

5.08.010 LICENSE/PERMIT REQUIRED 

1. No person shall engage in any of the following businesses or activities 
within the City limits without first obtaining a license or permit as 
provided in this Title, except as otherwise exempted herein: 

a. Carnival, amusement park, amusement concessionaire; 

b. Garage Sales; 

c. Junk dealer; 

d. Secondhand Dealer; 

e. Pawn Broker; 

f. Promotional event;  

g. Solicitor; or 

h. Marijuana Dispensary  

SECTION 2.  SMC Chapter 5.16 is amended to read as:  (additions are underlined; 
deletions appear as strikethroughs): 

5.16.010410 PERMIT ISSUANCEREGULATIONS 

1. No more than four (4) garage sales are allowed at any one location per 
year.  

2. A single garage sale at any one location may not last more than 72 
consecutive hours. 

3. Items sold at garage sales must be the personal property of those 
participating in the garage sale. Exception:  If the garage sale is a fund 



   
Ord. 995 March 21, 2016 

Page 2 of 2 

raiser for a Stayton based civic or nonprofit group fundraising for their 
organization or cause, the items sold may be donated items from 
individuals other than those who are participating in the event. 

4. Items sold at a garage sale may not be items that are purchased for the 
purpose of resale as second hand items as defined in SMC 5.32. 

The Administrator shall issue a permit for a garage sale upon application from 
any person and receipt of the required fee, without formal investigation as 
provided herein, if it appears from the application that the applicant will comply 
with the terms and provisions of this Chapter.  

5.16.020420 PERMIT DURATIONPENALTY 

A violation of this Chapter is punishable by a fine set by Council 
resolution. 

1. Permits issued for garage sales shall be valid for such period of times 
as the permit states, but in no event shall a permit be issued for a 
period of time exceeding seventy-two (72) consecutive hours. 

2. No more than four (4) permits per year shall be issued for any person 
or for any one location.  

5.16.4030 CONDUCT 

All garage sales shall be conducted wholly upon the premises of the permittee, 
unless otherwise specified in the permit.   

5.16.4040 [repealed]  

5.16.4050 [repealed]  

SECTION 3.  Upon enactment by the Stayton City Council and the Mayor’s signature, 
the Ordinance shall become effective 30 days after enactment. 

ADOPTED BY THE STAYTON CITY COUNCIL THIS 21st DAY OF MARCH, 2016. 

CITY OF STAYTON 

 

Signed:       By:____________________________ 
  Henry A. Porter, Mayor 

  ATTEST      

Signed:    By:        
   Keith D. Campbell, City Administrator 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

___________________________ 
David A. Rhoten, City Attorney 



 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Cindy Chauran, Associate Accountant 
   Elizabeth Baldwin, Utility Billing Clerk 
 
DATE:   March 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Monthly Finance Department Report 
  
 
Attached are the month-end reports for the major operating funds of the City which include 
General Fund, Public Works Administration Fund, Library Fund, Water Fund, Storm Water Fund, 
Sewer Fund, Street Fund, and Swimming Pool Fund. If you have any questions, please let us 
know. 
 
Departmental Activity 

 February 2016 January 2016 
Utility Billing   

Number of Bills Mailed 2,602 2,395 
Number of Bills Emailed 341 347 
Delinquent Notices Sent Out 575 584 
Courtesy Delinquent Notices Sent to Landlords 163 172 
Notified of Impending Shut-Off & Penalty 110 152 
Customers with Interrupted Services Non-Payment 19 22 
Services Still Disconnected 1 0 

Accounts Payable   
Number of Checks Issued 172 177 
Total Amount of Checks $478,388.77 $650,938.41 

 



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2016

GENERAL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  03/11/2016     04:01PM       PAGE: 1

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 1,733,919.52 1,809,000.00 75,080.48 95.9

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 3,487.58 7,200.00 3,712.42 48.4

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 2,089.82 1,500.00 (                   589.82) 139.3

FRANCHISE FEES 569,272.51 788,000.00 218,727.49 72.2

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 9,752.85 20,000.00 10,247.15 48.8

FINES & FORFEITURES 107,541.07 105,500.00 (                2,041.07) 101.9

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 128,426.43 175,190.00 46,763.57 73.3

INTEREST 519.23 2,000.00 1,480.77 26.0

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 211,818.96 402,455.00 190,636.04 52.6

2,766,827.97 3,310,845.00 544,017.03 83.6

EXPENDITURES

OPERATING 187,473.33 418,300.00 230,826.67 44.8

ADMINISTRATION 322,052.41 495,852.00 173,799.59 65.0

POLICE 1,298,605.25 1,968,841.00 670,235.75 66.0

PLANNING 94,751.06 181,340.00 86,588.94 52.3

COMMUNITY CENTER 56,836.81 89,948.00 33,111.19 63.2

PARKS 87,844.42 171,383.00 83,538.58 51.3

MUNICIPAL COURT 55,478.93 128,859.00 73,380.07 43.1

STREET LIGHTING 63,118.39 116,685.00 53,566.61 54.1

2,166,160.60 3,571,208.00 1,405,047.40 60.7



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2016

PUBLIC WORKS ADMINISTRATION

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  03/11/2016     04:01PM       PAGE: 2

REVENUE

INTEREST 235.03 100.00 (                   135.03) 235.0

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 259,285.47 426,390.00 167,104.53 60.8

259,520.50 426,490.00 166,969.50 60.9

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 253,678.92 457,852.00 204,173.08 55.4

253,678.92 457,852.00 204,173.08 55.4



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2016

LIBRARY FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  03/11/2016     04:01PM       PAGE: 3

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 148,861.64 157,262.00 8,400.36 94.7

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 40,053.72 82,647.00 42,593.28 48.5

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS 25,000.00 25,200.00 200.00 99.2

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 9,973.50 13,000.00 3,026.50 76.7

FINES & FORFEITURES 7,924.66 12,000.00 4,075.34 66.0

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 1,294.00 1,351.00 57.00 95.8

INTEREST 390.97 400.00 9.03 97.7

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 59,750.00 120,000.00 60,250.00 49.8

293,248.49 411,860.00 118,611.51 71.2

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 243,880.64 446,550.00 202,669.36 54.6

243,880.64 446,550.00 202,669.36 54.6



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2016

WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  03/11/2016     04:01PM       PAGE: 4

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,293,715.90 1,754,000.00 460,284.10 73.8

LICENSES, PERMITS & FEES 19,314.10 30,000.00 10,685.90 64.4

INTEREST 3,114.17 4,000.00 885.83 77.9

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 849.20 2,000.00 1,150.80 42.5

1,316,993.37 1,790,000.00 473,006.63 73.6

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 1,174,416.27 2,109,665.00 935,248.73 55.7

1,174,416.27 2,109,665.00 935,248.73 55.7



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2016

STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  03/11/2016     04:01PM       PAGE: 5

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICE 158,404.12 260,000.00 101,595.88 60.9

INTEREST 463.52 200.00 (                   263.52) 231.8

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 276,811.66 240,000.00 (              36,811.66) 115.3

435,679.30 500,200.00 64,520.70 87.1

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 392,691.89 496,916.50 104,224.61 79.0

392,691.89 496,916.50 104,224.61 79.0



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2016

SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  03/11/2016     04:01PM       PAGE: 6

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,991,707.36 2,997,498.00 1,005,790.64 66.5

INTEREST 11,857.76 12,500.00 642.24 94.9

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 100.00 12,500.00 12,400.00 .8

2,003,665.12 3,022,498.00 1,018,832.88 66.3

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 1,605,101.57 3,784,956.00 2,179,854.43 42.4

1,605,101.57 3,784,956.00 2,179,854.43 42.4



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2016

STREET FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  03/11/2016     04:01PM       PAGE: 7

REVENUE

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 57,526.37 84,000.00 26,473.63 68.5

INTERGOVERNMENTAL 270,831.35 511,876.00 241,044.65 52.9

INTEREST 2,396.85 900.00 (                1,496.85) 266.3

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 6,802.40 50,250.00 43,447.60 13.5

337,556.97 647,026.00 309,469.03 52.2

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 80 169,579.83 878,552.00 708,972.17 19.3

169,579.83 878,552.00 708,972.17 19.3



CITY OF STAYTON

FUND SUMMARY

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 29, 2016

SWIMMING POOL FUND

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE PCNT

FOR CITY COUNCIL PRESENTATION ONLY 67 % OF THE FISCAL YEAR HAS ELAPSED  03/11/2016     04:01PM       PAGE: 8

REVENUE

PROPERTY TAXES 153,292.77 159,750.00 6,457.23 96.0

GRANTS & CONTRIBUTIONS .00 10,000.00 10,000.00 .0

INTEREST 205.09 250.00 44.91 82.0

MISCELLANEOUS/TRANSFERS 7,632.62 15,000.00 7,367.38 50.9

161,130.48 185,000.00 23,869.52 87.1

EXPENDITURES

DEPARTMENT 86 96,664.30 205,928.00 109,263.70 46.9

96,664.30 205,928.00 109,263.70 46.9



 
Monthly Staff Report  Page 1 of 1  
March 21, 2016 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Rich Sebens, Chief of Police 
 
DATE:   March 21, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Staff Report 
  
     
 
Below you will see the stats for the Police Department for the month of February 
2016. 
  
 February 

2016 
Year to Date 

2016 
February 

2015 
Year to Date 

2015 
     
Police Activity 735 1464 735 1428 
Investigated Incidents 286 537 261 540 
Citations/Warning 108/193 183/370 101/197 205/349 
Traffic Accidents 7 14 6 13 
Juvenile Abuse 2 3 3 8 
Arrests 42 80 23 59 
Reserve Volunteer Hrs. 317.30 639.83 375.25 734.92 
Citizen Volunteer Hrs. 8 13 5 11 
Peer Court Referrals: 2 3 2 6 
     
   









 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
TO:   Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
FROM:  Kelli Stevens, Administrative Assistant 
 
DATE:   March 21st, 2016 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Monthly Operating Report for February 2016 
      
KEY ACTIVITIES STATUS 
 
• WWTP Facility Effluent flows: 62.52 million gallons were treated during February. The highest 

flow was 2.88 million gallons on February 1st and the lowest flow was 1.76 
million gallons on February 12th and February 26th. The average flow was 2.16 
million gallons. Total rainfall for February was 4.17 inches.  

 
• WTP  Highest production day was 2,354,000 gallons on February 24th, 2016. 
 
• Water System Replaced two meter boxes. Repair to a water line at 456 E Regis. Replaced a 

valve box at Third and Burnett. Cleaned number 1 filter bed and cleaned in front 
of water intake. Replaced ten meters. 
 

• Streets   Swept 156 curb miles and removed approximately 82 cubic yards of material. 
Used 1670 pounds of cold patch mix to repair some potholes in the City. 
Replaced the STOP sign at Ida and Washington. 
 

 Parks  Volunteers: Community Service – 0 hours, Volunteer – 0 hours, 
    Life skills High School Students – 31.5 hours. Total = 31.5 hours. 
    Parks Board Volunteer Hours – 12 hours total – 8 Volunteers 
• Building Permits   

            Permit Type Issued SDC’s Paid 
New Single Family Dwelling   
Residential Building Addition/Alter/Other 2  
Commercial Building Addition/Alter/Other   
Electrical 1  
Mechanical  1  
Plumbing   

TOTAL 4 0.00 
One (1) Residential SDC = $10,357.00 + $670.00 for Mill Creek SDC + Storm 
Water SDC $1861.00 or $2669.00 

 
Public Works Monthly Operating Report  Page 1 
March 21st, 2016 



 

Planning and Development Monthly Report, February 2016 Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

CITY OF STAYTON 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
 
 TO: Mayor Henry Porter and the Stayton City Council 
 
 FROM: Dan Fleishman, Planning and Development Director 
 
 DATE: March 21, 2016 
 
 SUBJECT: Report of Activities for February, 2016 
  
 

Enforcement Activity Highlights 

Debris at 1136 Westwood Dr removed by City-hired contractor.   

Planning & Development Activity Summary 

Continued to work with Friends of Old Town Stayton to assist in their formation. 

Helped coordinate a meeting of the Regional Solutions Team from Gov Brown’s office in 
Stayton.  The focus of the meeting was the Wilco Road Industrial Area. 

Planning Commission meeting reviewed three development proposals. 

Two pre-application meetings were held. 

Reviewed a building permit application for one new single family dwelling. 

Working with Public Works Department staff, improvements to the Geographic Information 
System continued 
 





CITY OF STAYTON 
APPLICATION FOR COMMISSION/COMMITTEE 

 
 
 

NAME OF COMMISSION/COMMITTEE:   PLEASE CHECK ONE: 
          New Applicant 
          Application for reappointment 
 
Years resided in Stayton:    
 
PLEASE PRINT
 
Name               
 
Address    Home Ph#      
 
Email Address    Cell Ph#      
     
Occupation              
 
Place of Employment             
 
Business Address             
 
Phone       Email          
 
 
1. Please give a brief description of the experience or training that qualifies you for 

membership on this commission/committee.  (If you wish, you may attach a resume or other 
pertinent material.) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2. Why do you want to become a member of the above-mentioned commission/committee and 

what specific contribution would you hope to make? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PLEASE COMPLETE BOTH SIDES OF THIS APPLICATION 

 



3. Please list the community concerns related to this commission/committee that you would 
like to see addressed if you are appointed. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Briefly describe your present or past involvement in relevant community groups.  (Having no 

previous involvement will not disqualify you for appointment.) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5. Are you currently serving on any Advisory Boards, Commissions or Committees?  If so, 

which ones? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6. How did you learn about this vacancy? 
 
   Our Website   Word of mouth             Other 
 
 
7. Are you employed by, have any business, contractual arrangements or family 

connections with programs having contractual agreements with the City that might be 
within the purview of the committee on which you are seeking appointment? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Signature of Applicant         Date      

  
 
PLEASE RETURN TO: City of Stayton 

362 N. Third Avenue 
Stayton, OR 97383 

  
It is the policy of the City to comply with all federal and state statutes on equal employment opportunity.  This 
policy shall be applied without regard to any individual employee or job applicant’s sex, race, color, religion, 
national origin, ancestry, age, marital status, political affiliation, genetic information, veteran status or any 
other legally protected status per state and federal law. 

 
PLEASE COMPLETE BOTH SIDES OF THIS APPLICATION 


























	CITY OF STAYTON
	M E M O R A N D U M
	FROM:  Kelli Stevens, Administrative Assistant

	Text1: Planning Commission Volunteer
	Check Box2: Yes
	Check Box3: Off
	Text3: Dixie Ellard
	Text4: 330 W Water St Stayton OR 97383
	Text5: 
	Text6: simpapu@wvi.com
	Text7: 503 910 1975
	Text8: retired
	Text9: N/A
	Text10: 
	Text11: 
	Text12: 
	Text13: Registered Nurse training with 50+ years experience, from being the only medical person on an island south of Ketchikan, Alaska for 10 years, to running 2 adult foster care homes in Silverton for 20 years. Volunteered for Habitat for Humanity for a year. On the board for a community college for 2 years.
	Text2: 7 years
	Text14: I would hope to become more involved in our community, and also be aware of what is being proposed and what is likely to come along.My contribution would be that I would have the time to dedicate to the position, and hopefully add to the decision making process fairly and with some forethought. 
	Check Box4: Off
	Check Box5: Off
	6: Yes
	Text17: No
	Text16: Working as a volunteer for Habitat for Humanity. They don't have a new housing project going, or I would continue to be involved.
	Text15: Hopefully improving the downtown core, for locals and tourists, also some road and park improvements. The nice flat ground here is a walkers paradise, so trail improvement would be nice to get everyone outside and visiting nature as much as possible.I would like to see all the empty buildings upgraded and be filled with businesses.
	Text18: No
	Text19: March 9th 2016


